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 1             CHAIR HENNINGER:  Please take notice
  

 2          that the Rensselaer County Industrial
  

 3          Development Agency will conduct a
  

 4          Public Hearing at 4 p.m. in the
  

 5          Rensselaer County Development Agency
  

 6          Conference Room of the Quackenbush
  

 7          Building, 333 Broadway, Third Floor,
  

 8          Troy, New York, on Thursday,
  

 9          December 9th, 2021.  I hereby call the
  

10          meeting to order.
  

11             Our first order of business is the
  

12          public comment period.  Some of you
  

13          were here last month, and we had
  

14          established some rules; that if you
  

15          wish to make a comment, please raise
  

16          your hand, and also give your name and
  

17          address so the court reporter or
  

18          stenographer can include that in the
  

19          record.
  

20             Once you're recognized, you have
  

21          three minutes to speak either for or
  

22          against anything on the agenda.  And if
  

23          we start to have duplication of
  

24          comments, we will ask you to yield and
  

25          move on in the hearing.
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 1             So I will open the public hearing.
  

 2          Is there anyone that wishes to speak at
  

 3          this time?
  

 4             There being none, I will close the
  

 5          public comment period and move onto
  

 6          Number 2 of the agenda, minutes of a
  

 7          previous meeting on November 18th of
  

 8          2021.
  

 9             We have a very concise record of the
  

10          previous meeting, and we've all had an
  

11          opportunity to review the various
  

12          attachments.  Are there any
  

13          corrections, additions or deletions to
  

14          the minutes as given to us?
  

15             MR. BOUNDS:  I make a motion to
  

16          approve as presented.
  

17             CHAIR HENNINGER:  Do I hear a
  

18          second?
  

19             MR. ROCCO:  Yes, me.
  

20             CHAIR HENNINGER:  I have a motion by
  

21          Ron, a second by Mike.
  

22             All those in favor, signify by
  

23          saying aye.
  

24
  

25                        (Ayes.)
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 1             CHAIR HENNINGER:  Opposed?
  

 2             None.
  

 3             Motioned carried.
  

 4             Number 3 on the agenda:  Report of
  

 5          the public hearing for First Columbia
  

 6          LLC.
  

 7             MR. BOUNDS:  We had a public hearing
  

 8          and there was zero attendees, so no
  

 9          public comment.
  

10             CHAIR HENNINGER:  Do I hear a motion
  

11          to approve the report of the public
  

12          hearing?
  

13             MR. BOUNDS:  We didn't receive any
  

14          written comments.
  

15             CHAIR HENNINGER:  There being no
  

16          written comments or verbal comments, I
  

17          will entertain a motion to approve the
  

18          report of the public hearing.
  

19             MR. CLINTON:  So moved.
  

20             MR. ROCCO:  Second.
  

21             CHAIR HENNINGER:  I have motion by
  

22          John, a second by Mike.
  

23             All those in favor, signify by
  

24          saying aye.
  

25
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 1                        (Ayes.)
  

 2
  

 3             CHAIR HENNINGER:  Opposed?
  

 4             None.
  

 5             Motion carried.
  

 6             Number 4 on the agenda is Mary Ellen
  

 7          Flores to give us our financial and
  

 8          budget report.
  

 9             MS. FLORES:  The first report is a
  

10          Statement of Financial Position, and as
  

11          of 11/30/21, our total assets are
  

12          $7,155,021 with $6,752,019 in cash.  We
  

13          have $156,916 in liabilities, so our
  

14          fund balance is $6,998,104.  There are
  

15          no significant changes to the Statement
  

16          of Financial Position.
  

17             The next report is a Statement of
  

18          Activity, and for the month of
  

19          November, there is a deficit of
  

20          $102,285.  The most significant
  

21          expenses is in salaries, and this is
  

22          due to a payment of the retirement
  

23          benefits during the month.
  

24             Other than that, nothing out of the
  

25          ordinary expenses.
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 1             CHAIR HENNINGER:  Do Board members
  

 2          have questions for Mary Ellen?
  

 3             I will entertain a motion to approve
  

 4          the budget as presented.
  

 5             MR. BOUNDS:  So moved.
  

 6             CHAIR HENNINGER:  I have a motion by
  

 7          Ron.  Do I have a second?
  

 8             MR. CLINTON:  Second.
  

 9             CHAIR HENNINGER:  Second by John.
  

10             All those in favor, signify by
  

11          saying aye.
  

12
  

13                        (Ayes.)
  

14
  

15             CHAIR HENNINGER:  Opposed?
  

16             None.
  

17             Motion carried.
  

18             Number 5 on the agenda is the
  

19          resolution rejecting the application
  

20          for the Gurley Avenue Property project.
  

21          And our counsel, Joe Scott, I think has
  

22          some words to offer on it.
  

23             MR. SCOTT:  Thank you, Chair.  So if
  

24          you go to this resolution in the
  

25          agenda, what I would like to do is
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 1          highlight a few of the provisions in
  

 2          the resolution.
  

 3             You will recall, by way of contacts,
  

 4          that this matter was at the time on the
  

 5          agenda for a meeting of the IDA Board
  

 6          last month.
  

 7             We took additional public comments
  

 8          from those in attendance and staff, and
  

 9          the Board directed counsel to go back
  

10          and review the project from a legal
  

11          standpoint, to review the project from
  

12          a certain findings standpoint with the
  

13          IDA staff.
  

14             This resolution is as a result of
  

15          that additional work, and what I would
  

16          like to do is raise a couple of issues
  

17          with you and to bring it to your
  

18          attention as we go through those, and
  

19          then we can open it up for discussion
  

20          by the Board and consideration of the
  

21          motion.
  

22             So page 2 just recites a little
  

23          background to the project.  We received
  

24          an application and had a public
  

25          hearing.  And you will recall at the
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 1          meeting last month, there was
  

 2          significant discussion about the
  

 3          results of the public hearing.  And
  

 4          there was also, as I indicated earlier,
  

 5          significant comments raised during the
  

 6          meeting itself.
  

 7             The findings that we worked through
  

 8          with staff and counsel are described on
  

 9          page 3 of the resolution under Section
  

10          2.
  

11             What I would particularly like to
  

12          highlight to you are the findings 1
  

13          through 6, underneath Subsection B on
  

14          page 3, indicating that the project
  

15          will not preserve permanent private
  

16          sector jobs.
  

17             The requested benefit with the
  

18          exemption from real property tax would
  

19          be a burden on the affected taxing
  

20          jurisdictions.  That was raised
  

21          repeatedly during the public hearing
  

22          and during the comments received at the
  

23          meeting itself.
  

24             There was also a discussion about
  

25          the burden that this will place on the
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 1          municipal services, and that's on
  

 2          Item 3.
  

 3             Item 4 talks about traffic
  

 4          congestion, and that was also raised
  

 5          during the public meeting.  And then
  

 6          there was also some site discussion.
  

 7          There were site issues raised with
  

 8          respect to the undertaking of the
  

 9          project.
  

10             The last finding is that there were
  

11          a significant number of people
  

12          attending both the public hearing and
  

13          the meeting, and all -- nearly all or
  

14          all of the comments raised were
  

15          negative with respect to the
  

16          undertaking of the project.
  

17             Under the IDA statute, the IDA is
  

18          supposed to hold a public hearing,
  

19          solicit public comment, and take that
  

20          public comment into account in
  

21          determining whether to move forward
  

22          with the granting of any financial
  

23          assistance or the undertaking of the
  

24          project.
  

25             We indicated at the last meeting
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 1          that the Board was, in fact, going to
  

 2          do that.  This resolution is a result
  

 3          of that consideration and that review
  

 4          of the project.
  

 5             And with that, Chair, I'll pass it
  

 6          back to you for discussion by the Board
  

 7          members for consideration of the
  

 8          motion.
  

 9             CHAIR HENNINGER:  Do we have any
  

10          questions for the Board?
  

11             There being none, the resolution
  

12          issuing findings and a decision on an
  

13          application for the financial
  

14          assistance for a project for Gurley
  

15          Avenue Property LLC, the company, and
  

16          as Counsel Scott has indicated we will
  

17          not be moving forward with this project
  

18          at this time.
  

19             Motion?
  

20             MR. ROCCO:  So moved.
  

21             CHAIR HENNINGER:  Second?
  

22             MR. BOUNDS:  Second.
  

23             CHAIR HENNINGER:  A motion by Mike,
  

24          a second by Ron.
  

25             All those in favor, signify by
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 1          saying aye.
  

 2
  

 3                        (Ayes.)
  

 4
  

 5             CHAIR HENNINGER:  Opposed?
  

 6             None.
  

 7             Motion carried.
  

 8             Number 6:  A resolution for SEQRA
  

 9          Notice of Intent to accept lead agency
  

10          status and adopt a positive declaration
  

11          for the Schodack I-90 corridor plan.
  

12          This is something that we discussed I
  

13          believe in August?
  

14             MR. PASINELLA:  If you recall,
  

15          several months ago we hired an
  

16          engineering firm to form a GPIS on
  

17          several hundred acres in the Schodack
  

18          area.  We have identified a bunch of
  

19          parcels that I do believe were a
  

20          potential for developing.  And in the
  

21          process, in order to really get at what
  

22          we like to term shovel-ready sites, to
  

23          take lead agency status, it would be
  

24          best to have a typical environment for
  

25          development.  So that's what this
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 1          resolution is asking.
  

 2             CHAIR HENNINGER:  Questions?
  

 3             MR. PASINELLA:  This is just making
  

 4          us the lead agency as opposed to the
  

 5          town on the environmental development.
  

 6             MR. CLINTON:  When was this?
  

 7             MR. PASINELLA:  This was over the
  

 8          summer.  I think it was August, July or
  

 9          August.
  

10             CHAIR HENNINGER:  We hired them in
  

11          August, but this is to make us the lead
  

12          agency on the --
  

13             MR. PASINELLA:  Yeah, so we are made
  

14          the lead agency.
  

15             CHAIR HENNINGER:  Questions?
  

16             Do I have a motion?
  

17             MR. ROCCO:  Motion.
  

18             CHAIR HENNINGER:  I have a motion by
  

19          Mike.  Do I hear a second?
  

20             MR. BOUNDS:  Second.
  

21             CHAIR HENNINGER:  Second by John.
  

22             All those in favor, signify by
  

23          saying aye.
  

24
  

25                        (Ayes.)
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 1
  

 2             CHAIR HENNINGER:  Opposed?
  

 3             None.
  

 4             Motion carried.
  

 5             Number 7 on the agenda is the
  

 6          resolution authorizing execution of
  

 7          professional services agreement with a
  

 8          CFO for Hire, a Division of BST &
  

 9          Company CPA's LLP.  This is to, in
  

10          fact, keep Mary Ellen coming to do our
  

11          books.
  

12             Are there any questions regarding
  

13          the proposed contract?
  

14             There being none, I entertain a
  

15          motion to approve the resolution
  

16          authorization, the execution of a
  

17          professional services agreement with
  

18          CFO for Hire, a Division of BST &
  

19          Company CPA's LLP.
  

20             MR. BOUNDS:  Motion.
  

21             CHAIR HENNINGER:  I have a motion by
  

22          Ron.  Do I hear a second?
  

23             MS. POWELL:  I second that.
  

24             CHAIR HENNINGER:  A second by Renee.
  

25             All those in favor, signify by



M-F Reporting, Inc.     (518) 478-7220
MFReportingNY.com

PUBLIC MEETING 15

  

 1          saying aye.
  

 2
  

 3                        (Ayes.)
  

 4
  

 5             CHAIR HENNINGER:  Opposed?
  

 6             None.
  

 7             Motion carried.
  

 8             Number 8:  Resolution authorizing
  

 9          agency participation in the New York
  

10          State Tourism Matching Funds program.
  

11             MR. PASINELLA:  This is something
  

12          that we do on an annual basis.  I am
  

13          not sure it needs an explanation.  We
  

14          have been doing this for many years
  

15          where we act as the agent for
  

16          Rensselaer County with the New York
  

17          State Tourism Matching Funds Program.
  

18             CHAIR HENNINGER:  Questions?
  

19             MR. ROCCO:  Motion.
  

20             CHAIR HENNINGER:  I have a motion by
  

21          Mike.  Do I hear a second?
  

22             MR. BOUNDS:  Second.
  

23             CHAIR HENNINGER:  I have a second by
  

24          Ron.
  

25             All those in favor, signify by
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 1          saying aye.
  

 2
  

 3                        (Ayes.)
  

 4
  

 5             CHAIR HENNINGER:  Opposed?
  

 6             None.
  

 7             Motion carried.
  

 8             Number 9:  The resolution to extend
  

 9          the agent appointment term of the
  

10          Capital City Produce LLC and 3 E
  

11          Industrial Associates LLC Project.
  

12             We have someone on the phone.
  

13             MS. BENNETT:  This is Melissa
  

14          Bennett from Barclay Damon.
  

15             This resolution is received from the
  

16          company to extend their completion date
  

17          at the time of conception and date
  

18          until January 31st, 2022, due to delays
  

19          in scheduling and material availability
  

20          due to COVID.  They'll need a little
  

21          longer to complete the project.
  

22             And so what the agency will be
  

23          authorizing with this resolution is to
  

24          extend that date and enter into a
  

25          modification agreement in your standard
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 1          form related to that.  So it would
  

 2          extend the FT 60 MD for both of the
  

 3          companies involved with the project
  

 4          from the general contractor, subject to
  

 5          updated insurance, complying with the
  

 6          terms of the statement documents, and
  

 7          entering these documents.
  

 8             Are there any questions?
  

 9             MR. PASINELLA:  Essentially, there
  

10          is a piece of equipment that's power
  

11          related, and the project is
  

12          significantly done with the exception
  

13          of this power equipment just coming in.
  

14          And because they have refrigeration,
  

15          they haven't been able to test the
  

16          refrigeration to make sure it's all
  

17          working properly.  I believe they
  

18          expect it to be done by the end of the
  

19          year, but they need it just in case.
  

20             CHAIR HENNINGER:  Any other
  

21          questions?
  

22             The resolution extending the terms
  

23          of the appointment for Capital City
  

24          Produce LLC and 3 E Industrial
  

25          Associates LLC as agents, and Tralongo
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 1          Builders Incorporated as a subagent of
  

 2          Rensselaer County Industrial
  

 3          Development Agency, and the execution
  

 4          of a certain modification agreement for
  

 5          the purpose of undertaking and
  

 6          completing the Capital City Produce
  

 7          LLC/3 E Industrial Associates LLC
  

 8          project.
  

 9             MR. ROCCO:  Motion.
  

10             CHAIR HENNINGER:  I have a motion by
  

11          Mike.  Do I have a second?
  

12             MR. CLINTON:  Second.
  

13             CHAIR HENNINGER:  Second by John.
  

14             All those in favor, signify by
  

15          saying aye.
  

16
  

17                        (Ayes.)
  

18
  

19             CHAIR HENNINGER:  Opposed?
  

20             None.
  

21             Motion carried.
  

22             MR. PASINELLA:  I apologize for not
  

23          being here at the last meeting, I was
  

24          in California.
  

25             I ask that the Board go into
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 1          executive session to continue a session
  

 2          on personnel matters.
  

 3             MR. SCOTT:  Yes, specifically the
  

 4          qualifications background.
  

 5             MR. PASINELLA:  Yes.
  

 6             CHAIR HENNINGER:  We need a motion.
  

 7             MR. ROCCO:  Motion.
  

 8             MR. BOUNDS:  Second.
  

 9             CHAIR HENNINGER:  I have a motion by
  

10          Mike, a second by Ron.
  

11             All those in favor, signify by
  

12          saying aye.
  

13
  

14                        (Ayes.)
  

15
  

16             CHAIR HENNINGER:  Opposed.
  

17             None.
  

18             Motion carried.  Okay.
  

19                     *  *  *  *
  

20              (Executive session proceeding
  

21          held outside of this record.)
  

22                     *  *  *  *
  

23             CHAIR HENNINGER:  I should indicate
  

24          that no motions were made in the
  

25          executive session.
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 1             We have a motion to come out of
  

 2          executive session by John, second --
  

 3          excuse me -- motion by Ron, second by
  

 4          John; all those were in favor of the
  

 5          motion.
  

 6             At this time, I'll propose two
  

 7        resolution items.  The first one is to
  

 8        authorize the executive director to proceed
  

 9        to hire a deputy executive director and
  

10        report back to the Board.
  

11             Do I hear a motion?
  

12             MR. BOUNDS:  Motion.
  

13             MR. ROCCO:  Second.
  

14             CHAIR HENNINGER:  Motion by Ron,
  

15          second by Mike.
  

16             All those in favor, signify by
  

17          saying aye.
  

18
  

19                        (Ayes.)
  

20
  

21             CHAIR HENNINGER:  Opposed?
  

22             None.
  

23             Motion carried.
  

24             The second motion is to approve two
  

25          increases for the two IDA counsel
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 1          members, the two IDA counsels,
  

 2          attorneys.
  

 3             MR. BOUNDS:  So moved.
  

 4             CHAIR HENNINGER:  I have a motion by
  

 5          Ron.  Do I have a second?
  

 6             MR. ROCCO:  Second.
  

 7             CHAIR HENNINGER:  Second by Mike.
  

 8             All those in favor, signify by
  

 9          saying aye.
  

10
  

11                        (Ayes.)
  

12
  

13             CHAIR HENNINGER:  Opposed?
  

14             None.
  

15             Motion carried.
  

16             At this point, I think we are ready
  

17          to adjourn.  I would like to wish
  

18          everybody a very happy holiday.  We
  

19          will see you back in 2022.
  

20             Do I have a motion for adjournment?
  

21             MR. ROCCO:  So moved.
  

22             CHAIR HENNINGER:  Motion by Mike.
  

23          Do I have a second?
  

24             MS. POWELL:  By Renee.
  

25             CHAIR HENNINGER:  Second by Renee.
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 1             All those in favor, signify by
  

 2          saying aye.
  

 3
  

 4                       (Ayes.)
  

 5
  

 6             CHAIR HENNINGER:  Opposed?
  

 7             None.
  

 8             Motion carried.
  

 9             Thank you.
  

10             (Time noted:  4:55 p.m.)
  

11
  

12
  

13
  

14
  

15
  

16
  

17
  

18
  

19
  

20
  

21
  

22
  

23
  

24
  

25
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   1
  

 2             C E R T I F I C A T I O N
  

 3
  

 4             I, KATHERINE D. NICHOLS, RPR, do
  

 5          hereby certify that I recorded
  

 6          stenographically the foregoing
  

 7          testimony taken at the time and place
  

 8          herein stated and the preceding
  

 9          testimony is a true and accurate
  

10          transcript hereof to the best of my
  

11          knowledge and belief.
  

12
  

13
  

14                    _______________________________
  

15                    KATHERINE D. NICHOLS, RPR
  

16
  

17
  

18
  

19
  

20
  

21
  

22
  

23
  

24
  

25
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